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August 8, 2025 

 

 

 

Janet Young 

Agency Rules Coordinator 

Department of Revenue 

2450 Shumard Oak Blvd. 

Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0400 

 

 

Dear Janet Young: 

 

Your adoption package for Rule 12D-16.002, F.A.C. was received, electronically, by the Florida 

Department of State, Administrative Code and Register at 10:00 a.m. on August 8, 2025. After review, it 

appears that the package meets statutory requirements and those of Rule 1-1.010, F.A.C. and is deemed 

filed for adoption at the time received, as indicated above. The effective date is August 28, 2025. 

 

 

 

 

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

 

Alexandra Leijon 

Administrative Code and Register Director 
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From: Mike Cotton
To: RuleAdoptions
Cc: Janet Young; Janice Forrester; Leijon, Alexandra
Subject: RE: PTO Certification Rule 12D-16.002 FAC
Date: Friday, August 8, 2025 10:00:43 AM
Attachments: image001.png

image003.png
Certification 12D-16.pdf
12D-16.002 Coded Text.docx

EMAIL RECEIVED FROM EXTERNAL
SOURCE

The attachments/links in this message have been scanned by Proofpoint.

We have corrected the date on the cover letter. I am submitting all documents again.
Please let me know if you have additional questions or concerns.
 
Thank you,
 
Mike
 
 

From: RuleAdoptions <RuleAdoptions@dos.fl.gov> 
Sent: Friday, August 8, 2025 9:38 AM
To: Mike Cotton <Mike.Cotton@floridarevenue.com>
Cc: Janet Young <Janet.Young@floridarevenue.com>; Janice Forrester
<Janice.Forrester@floridarevenue.com>; Leijon, Alexandra <Alexandra.Leijon@dos.fl.gov>
Subject: RE: PTO Certification Rule 12D-16.002 FAC
 

Caution: This email originated from outside the organization. Do not click links or
open attachments unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

 
Good morning,
 
I am returning the adoption for one correction.
 
The date on the cover letter should reflect the file date.
 
Best,
 
Whitley L. Harris
Rules Coordinator
Administrative Code and Register
Office of General Counsel

mailto:Mike.Cotton@floridarevenue.com
mailto:RuleAdoptions@dos.fl.gov
mailto:Janet.Young@floridarevenue.com
mailto:/o=ExchangeLabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group (FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=9e77398aa2674d7ebabccd505e7aa936-Janice Forr
mailto:Alexandra.Leijon@dos.fl.gov
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August 8, 2025 
 


Ms. Alexandra Leijon, Director 
Florida Administrative Code and Register 
Florida Department of State 
R.A. Gray Building 
500 S. Bronough Street 
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0250 
 
Re: Certification of Department of Revenue Rule 
 
Dear Ms. Leijon: 
 
The following Department of Revenue rule is presented for certification: 
 
12D-16.002  Index to Forms      
 
The following persons may be contacted regarding this rule certification: 
 


Janice Forrester 850-617-8886  Janice.Forrester@floridarevenue.com 
Mike Cotton  850-617-8870  Mike.Cotton@floridarevenue.com 
 
Florida Department of Revenue  
Building Two, Room 3500 
2450 Shumard Oak Blvd. 
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0100 


 
Sincerely, 
 


 
 
Janet L. Young 
Agency Rules Coordinator 
 
Attachments 
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STATE OF FLORIDA  


DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE 


PROPERTY TAX OVERSIGHT PROGRAM  


CHAPTER 12D-16, FLORIDA ADMINISTRATIVE CODE 


ADMINISTRATION OF FORMS 


AMENDING RULE 12D-16.002 


 


12D-16.002 Index to Forms. 


(1) The following paragraphs list the forms adopted by the Department of Revenue. A copy of these forms may 


be obtained from the Department’s website at floridarevenue.com/property/forms, or by writing to: Property Tax 


Oversight Program, Department of Revenue, Post Office Box 3000, Tallahassee, Florida 32315-3000. Persons with 


hearing or speech impairments may call the Florida Relay Service at 711, 1(800)955-8770 (Voice) and 1(800)955-


8771 (TTY). The Department of Revenue adopts, and incorporates by reference in this rule, the following forms and 


instructions: 


 Form Number Form Title Effective Date 


(2) through (12) No change. 


(13)(a) through (b) No change.  


(c) DR-420FC Distribution to Fiscally Constrained Counties Application (r. 08/25 


10/22)  


08/25 10/22 


  https://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-18432 14804  


(d) through (g) No change. 


(14) through (16) No change. 


(17)(a) DR-462 Application for Refund of Ad Valorem Taxes (r. 08/25 12/11) 08/25 11/12 


  https://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-18433 01766  


(b) No change.   


(18) through (27) No change. 


(28)(a) DR-490 Notice of Disapproval of Application for Property Tax Exemption or 08/25 01/23 
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Classification by The County Property Appraiser (r. 08/25 01/23) 


  https://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-18434 14892  


(b) No change.   


(29) through (36) No change. 


(37)(a) DR-501 Original Application for Homestead and Related Tax Exemptions (r. 


08/25 01/25) 


08/25 03/25 


  https://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-18435 18025  


(b) through (e) No change. 


(f) DR-501PGP Original Application for Assessment Reduction for Living Quarters of  


Parents or Grandparents (r. 08/25 01/25) 


08/25 03/25 


  https://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-18436 18026  


(g) through (j) No change. 


(38) No change. 


(39)(a) DR-504 No change.  


(b) DR-504AFH Ad Valorem Tax Exemption Application and Return for Multifamily 


Project and Affordable Housing Property (r. 08/25 02/24) 


08/25 02/24 


  https://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-18437 16355  


(c) through (g) No change. 


(40) through (43) No change.  


(44)(a) DR-510 Cancellation or Correction of Tax Certificate (r. 08/25 12/11) 08/25 11/12 


  https://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-18438 01803  


(b) No change. 


(45) through (59) No change. 


 


Rulemaking Authority 95.18(3), 192.001(18), 193.085(4)(a), (b), 193.091(3)(b), 193.114(1), (6), 193.1142(1), 


193.122(1), (2), 193.155(8)(f), (h), 193.1556(2), 193.461(3)(a), (e), 193.501(8), (9), 193.625(3)(a), 194.011(3), 


194.014, 194.034(1)(b), (c), (2), 194.037(3), 195.002(2), 195.027(1), (4), 195.087(1)(a), (2), 196.011(1), (5), (6), 


196.075(4)(d), (5), 196.101(4)(c), 196.121(1), 196.173(6)(a), 196.1975(4)(c), 196.1978, 197.1979, 196.198, 
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196.1983, 196.1995(8), 197.2423(3), 197.2425, 197.319, 197.323, 197.3632(5)(b), 197.3635, 197.552, 200.065(1), 


(5), 200.069, 218.12(12), 218.125(2), 218.135(2), 218.26(1) FS. Law Implemented 95.18, 136.03, 145.10(2), 


145.11(2), 189.012, 192.001(18), 193.011(8), 193.023, 193.052, 193.075, 193.085, 193.092, 193.114, 193.1142, 


193.122, 193.155, 193.1554, 193.1555, 193.1556, 193.461, 193.481, 193.501, 193.503, 193.621, 193.625, 193.703, 


194.011, 194.014, 194.032, 194.034, 194.035, 194.037, 194.171, 194.181, 194.301(2)(b), 195.002, 195.022, 


195.027(4), 195.073, 195.087, 196.011, 196.012(13), 196.015, 196.031, 196.075, 196.082, 196.092, 196.095, 


196.101, 196.121, 196.131, 196.141, 196.151, 196.161(1)(a), 196.173, 196.183, 196.193, 196.195, 196.196, 


196.1961, 196.197, 196.1975, 196.1977, 196.1978, 196.1979, 196.198, 196.1983, 196.199, 196.1995, 196.2001, 


196.2002, 196.202, 196.24, 196.26, 197.182, 197.222, 197.2423, 197.2425, 197.252, 197.2524, 197.262, 197.319, 


197.322(1), 197.323, 197.3632, 197.3635, 197.373, 197.412, 197.413, 197.417(1), 197.432, 197.443, 197.492, 


197.502, 197.542, 197.552, 200.065, 200.068, 200.069, 200.071, 200.081, 218.12, 218.125, 218.135, 218.23, 


218.63, 218.66(2), 218.67 FS., ss. 9(b), 12 of Article VII of Florida Constitution. History–New 10-12-76, Amended 


4-11-80, 9-17-80, 5-17-81, 1-18-82, 4-29-82, Formerly 12D-16.02, Amended 12-26-88, 1-9-92, 12-10-92, 1-11-94, 


12-27-94, 12-28-95, 12-25-96, 12-30-97, 12-31-98, 2-3-00, 1-9-01, 12-27-01, 1-20-03, 1-26-04, 12-30-04, 1-16-06, 


10-2-07, 3-30-10, 11-1-12, 9-10-15, 4-5-16, 6-14-16, 1-9-17, 9-19-17, 1-17-18, 4-10-18, 9-17-18, 7-9-19, 12-7-20, 


10-26-21, 11-11-21, 6-13-22, 10-30-22, 11-20-22, 7-18-23, 11-26-23, 2-8-24, 4-27-25,          . 























From: FL-Rules@dos.state.fl.us
To: Anthony Jackson
Cc: flrules@dos.state.fl.us
Subject: 12D-16.002 Reference Material for Rule Adoption Approved
Date: Friday, July 25, 2025 4:50:01 PM


Dear Jacksona:
The reference material for rule adoption you submitted has been approved by the
Administrative Code and Register Staff. 
The approved material is available in the Review/Modify Agency Reference Material list
(Agency Main Menu page).
Rule Number: 12D-16.002
Reference Number: Ref-18432; Reference Name: DR 420FC, Distribution to Fiscally
Constrained Counties Application


Click here to log in. 


Administrative Code and Register Staff
Florida Department of State



mailto:FL-Rules@dos.state.fl.us

mailto:Anthony.Jackson@floridarevenue.com

mailto:flrules@dos.state.fl.us

http://flrules.org/agency/relationHome.asp?RRID=837612

http://flrules.org/agency/Login.asp



























		12D-16.002 Coded Text 2024 const amendment.pdf

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

[bookmark: _Hlk130219568](1) The following paragraphs list the forms adopted by the Department of Revenue. A copy of these forms may be obtained from the Department’s website at floridarevenue.com/property/forms, or by writing to: Property Tax Oversight Program, Department of Revenue, Post Office Box 3000, Tallahassee, Florida 32315-3000. Persons with hearing or speech impairments may call the Florida Relay Service at 711, 1(800)955-8770 (Voice) and 1(800)955-8771 (TTY). The Department of Revenue adopts, and incorporates by reference in this rule, the following forms and instructions:

		

		Form Number

		Form Title

		Effective Date



		(2) through (12) No change.



		(13)(a) through (b) No change. 



		(c)

		DR-420FC

		Distribution to Fiscally Constrained Counties Application (r. 08/25 10/22) 

		08/25 10/22



		

		

		https://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-18432 14804

		



		(d) through (g) No change.



		(14) through (16) No change.



		(17)(a)

		DR-462

		Application for Refund of Ad Valorem Taxes (r. 08/25 12/11)

		08/25 11/12



		

		

		https://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-18433 01766

		



		(b)

		No change.

		

		



		(18) through (27) No change.



		(28)(a)

		DR-490

		Notice of Disapproval of Application for Property Tax Exemption or Classification by The County Property Appraiser (r. 08/25 01/23)

		08/25 01/23



		

		

		https://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-18434 14892

		



		(b)

		No change.

		

		



		(29) through (36) No change.



		(37)(a)

		DR-501

		Original Application for Homestead and Related Tax Exemptions (r. 08/25 01/25)

		08/25 03/25



		

		

		https://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-18435 18025

		



		(b) through (e) No change.



		(f)

		DR-501PGP

		Original Application for Assessment Reduction for Living Quarters of 

Parents or Grandparents (r. 08/25 01/25)

		08/25 03/25



		

		

		https://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-18436 18026

		



		(g) through (j) No change.



		(38) No change.



		[bookmark: _Hlk193697297](39)(a)

		DR-504

		No change.

		



		(b)

		DR-504AFH

		Ad Valorem Tax Exemption Application and Return for Multifamily Project and Affordable Housing Property (r. 08/25 02/24)

		08/25 02/24



		

		

		https://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-18437 16355

		



		[bookmark: _Hlk193697471](c) through (g) No change.



		(40) through (43) No change. 



		(44)(a)

		DR-510

		Cancellation or Correction of Tax Certificate (r. 08/25 12/11)

		08/25 11/12



		

		

		https://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-18438 01803

		



		(b) No change.



		(45) through (59) No change.







Rulemaking Authority 95.18(3), 192.001(18), 193.085(4)(a), (b), 193.091(3)(b), 193.114(1), (6), 193.1142(1), 193.122(1), (2), 193.155(8)(f), (h), 193.1556(2), 193.461(3)(a), (e), 193.501(8), (9), 193.625(3)(a), 194.011(3), 194.014, 194.034(1)(b), (c), (2), 194.037(3), 195.002(2), 195.027(1), (4), 195.087(1)(a), (2), 196.011(1), (5), (6), 196.075(4)(d), (5), 196.101(4)(c), 196.121(1), 196.173(6)(a), 196.1975(4)(c), 196.1978, 197.1979, 196.198, 196.1983, 196.1995(8), 197.2423(3), 197.2425, 197.319, 197.323, 197.3632(5)(b), 197.3635, 197.552, 200.065(1), (5), 200.069, 218.12(12), 218.125(2), 218.135(2), 218.26(1) FS. Law Implemented 95.18, 136.03, 145.10(2), 145.11(2), 189.012, 192.001(18), 193.011(8), 193.023, 193.052, 193.075, 193.085, 193.092, 193.114, 193.1142, 193.122, 193.155, 193.1554, 193.1555, 193.1556, 193.461, 193.481, 193.501, 193.503, 193.621, 193.625, 193.703, 194.011, 194.014, 194.032, 194.034, 194.035, 194.037, 194.171, 194.181, 194.301(2)(b), 195.002, 195.022, 195.027(4), 195.073, 195.087, 196.011, 196.012(13), 196.015, 196.031, 196.075, 196.082, 196.092, 196.095, 196.101, 196.121, 196.131, 196.141, 196.151, 196.161(1)(a), 196.173, 196.183, 196.193, 196.195, 196.196, 196.1961, 196.197, 196.1975, 196.1977, 196.1978, 196.1979, 196.198, 196.1983, 196.199, 196.1995, 196.2001, 196.2002, 196.202, 196.24, 196.26, 197.182, 197.222, 197.2423, 197.2425, 197.252, 197.2524, 197.262, 197.319, 197.322(1), 197.323, 197.3632, 197.3635, 197.373, 197.412, 197.413, 197.417(1), 197.432, 197.443, 197.492, 197.502, 197.542, 197.552, 200.065, 200.068, 200.069, 200.071, 200.081, 218.12, 218.125, 218.135, 218.23, 218.63, 218.66(2), 218.67 FS., ss. 9(b), 12 of Article VII of Florida Constitution. History–New 10-12-76, Amended 4-11-80, 9-17-80, 5-17-81, 1-18-82, 4-29-82, Formerly 12D-16.02, Amended 12-26-88, 1-9-92, 12-10-92, 1-11-94, 12-27-94, 12-28-95, 12-25-96, 12-30-97, 12-31-98, 2-3-00, 1-9-01, 12-27-01, 1-20-03, 1-26-04, 12-30-04, 1-16-06, 10-2-07, 3-30-10, 11-1-12, 9-10-15, 4-5-16, 6-14-16, 1-9-17, 9-19-17, 1-17-18, 4-10-18, 9-17-18, 7-9-19, 12-7-20, 10-26-21, 11-11-21, 6-13-22, 10-30-22, 11-20-22, 7-18-23, 11-26-23, 2-8-24, 4-27-25,          .
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      BEN ALBRITTON                                                                                                                                                                           DANIEL PEREZ
                 President                                                                                                                                                                                                Speaker
 

THE FLORIDA LEGISLATURE

JOINT ADMINISTRATIVE
PROCEDURES COMMITTEE

Representative Tobin Rogers “Toby” Overdorf, Chair KENNETH J. PLANTE
Senator Erin Grall, Vice Chair COORDINATOR
Senator Mack Bernard Room 680, Pepper Building
Senator Don Gaetz 111 West Madison Street
Senator Thomas J. “Tom” Leek Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1400
Senator Tina Scott Polsky Telephone (850) 488-9110
Senator Carlos Guillermo Smith Fax (850) 922-6934
Senator Clay Yarborough www.japc.state.fl.us
Representative William “Bill” Conerly japc@leg.state.fl.us
Representative Chad Johnson
Representative Kim Kendall
Representative Leonard Spencer
Representative Debra Tendrich
Representative Meg Weinberger

C E R T I F I C A T I O N

Department: Department of Revenue
Agency: Property Tax Oversight Program
Rule No(s): 12D-16.002
File Control No: 196426

As required by subparagraph 120.54(3)(e)4 F.S., the Joint Administrative Procedures Committee 
hereby certifies that:

☒ There were no material and timely written comments or written inquiries made on 
behalf of the committee regarding the above listed rule; or

☐ The adopting agency has responded in writing to all material and timely written 
comments or written inquiries made on behalf of the committee regarding the above 
listed rules; or

☐ The adopting agency has not responded in writing to all material and timely written 
comments or written inquiries made on behalf of the Committee regarding the above 
listed rules.

Certification Date: 8/1/2025

This certification expires after: 8/8/2025

Certifying Attorney: Jamie Jackson

NOTE:
☒ The above certified rules include materials incorporated by reference.

☐ The above certified rules do not include materials incorporated by reference.

Form Updated 12/9/2021

https://www.myfloridahouse.gov/Sections/Representatives/details.aspx?MemberId=4908&LegislativeTermId=91
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https://www.myfloridahouse.gov/Sections/Representatives/details.aspx?MemberId=4915&LegislativeTermId=91
https://www.myfloridahouse.gov/Sections/Representatives/details.aspx?MemberId=4924&LegislativeTermId=91
https://www.myfloridahouse.gov/Sections/Representatives/details.aspx?MemberId=4926&LegislativeTermId=91


 
 

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
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